
 

Dinas a Sir Abertawe 
 
Hysbysiad o Gyfarfod 
 
Fe'ch gwahoddir i gyfarfod  

 

Panel Perfformiad Craffu - Addysg 
 

Lleoliad: 
 

O bell drwy Microsoft Teams 
 

Dyddiad: 
 

Dydd Iau, 22 Chwefror 2024 

Amser: 
 

4.00 pm 

Cynullydd: Y Cynghorydd  Lyndon Jones MBE 
 

Aelodaeth: 
Cynghorwyr: A Davis, A M Day, F M Gordon, B Hopkins, Y V Jardine, S M Jones, 
S Joy, J D McGettrick, F D O'Brien a/ac A J O'Connor 
Aelodau Cyfetholedig: Beth Allender a/ac Elizabeth Lee 
 
 

 
Agenda 

Rhif y Dudalen. 
1   Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb.  
 
2   Datgeliadau o fuddiannau personol a rhagfarnol.  

 www.abertawe.gov.uk/DatgeliadauBuddiannau  
 
3   Gwahardd Pleidleisiau Chwip a Datgan Chwipiau'r Pleidiau  
 
4   Cwestiynau gan y Cyhoedd  

 Gellir cyflwyno cwestiynau’n ysgrifenedig i’r adran 
Graffu craffu@abertawe.gov.uk tan ganol dydd ar y diwrnod gwaith cyn y 
cyfarfod. Cwestiynau ysgrifenedig sy’n cael blaenoriaeth. Gall y cyhoedd 
ddod i’r cyfarfod a gofyn cwestiynau’n bersonol os oes digon o amser. Mae’n 
rhaid bod cwestiynau’n berthnasol i eitemau ar ran agored yr agenda a 
byddwn yn ymdrin â hwy o fewn cyfnod o 10 munud. 

 

 
5   Sesiwn Craffu Ysgolion 2 - Ysgol Gynradd Clydach 1 - 17 

 Pennaeth a Chadeirydd Llywodraethwyr Ysgol Gynradd Clydach.  
 
6   Cynllun Gwaith 2023/2024 18 - 19 
 
 

Cyfarfod nesaf: Dydd Mercher, 13 Mawrth 2024 am 4.00 pm 
 
 
 

 

http://www.abertawe.gov.uk/DatgeliadauBuddiannau
mailto:craffu@abertawe.gov.uk


 

 

 
 
Huw Evans 
Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
Dydd Iau, 15 Chwefror 2024 

Cyswllt: Craffu 
 



 
 

Report of the Convener of the Education Scrutiny Performance Panel 
22 February 2024 

 

Session with the Clydach Primary School 
 

Purpose: To discuss progress of Clydach Primary School Improvement 
Plan 

Content: Discussion and Q&A session with Clydach Primary School 
Headteacher and Chair of Governors 
 

Councillors are 
being asked to: 

Consider the information discussed at the session and give views 
to the Cabinet Member via a letter from the Convener  

Lead Councillor: Councillor Lyndon Jones, Convener of the Education Scrutiny 
Performance Panel 

Lead Officer &  
Report Author: 

Michelle Roberts, Scrutiny Officer 
E-mail: michelle.roberts@swansea.gov.uk  

 
1.0 The Meeting 
 
1.1 The Panel, this year, has scheduled to speak to three schools about their 

school improvement plan.  One of the schools chosen was Clydach Primary 
School. 

 
1.2 The headline issues/questions for discussion sent to the school in advance of 

the meeting were: 
 

• Can you outline progress with your school improvement plan including 
progress with Estyn recommendations and introducing the new curriculum? 

• What the barriers might be to the school improving its learner outcomes 
further including any challenges they are experiencing? 

• What the governing bodies’ priorities are and how are they being 
addressed? 

• How well you feel you have been supported by the local authority, the 
school improvement service and Partneriaeth. 

 
2.0 Estyn Inspection 
 
2.1 The schools latest Estyn Inspection is attached to this report. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5

mailto:michelle.roberts@swansea.gov.uk


A report on 

Clydach Primary School 

Sybil Street 
Clydach 
Swansea 
SA6 5EU 

Date of inspection:  November 2022 

by 

Estyn, His Majesty’s Inspectorate for Education 

and Training in Wales 

Page 2



A report on Clydach Primary School 
November 2022 

1 

About Clydach Primary School 

Name of provider Clydach Primary School 

Local authority City and County of Swansea 

Language of the provider English 

Type of school Primary 

Religious character NA 

Number of pupils on roll 202 

Pupils of statutory school age 169 

Number in nursery classes 28 

Percentage of pupils eligible for free 
school meals over a three-year average 
(The national percentage of pupils 
eligible for free school meals over a 
three-year average in Primary is 23.0%) 

24.6% 

Percentage of pupils identified as having 
additional learning needs (a) (The 
national percentage of pupils identified 
as having an additional learning need in 
Primary is 16.1%) 

14.2% 

Percentage of pupils who speak Welsh 
at home 

0.0% 

Percentage of pupils with English as an 
additional language 

7.7% 

Date of headteacher appointment 03/09/2012 

Date of previous Estyn inspection (if 
applicable) 

01/01/2014 

Start date of inspection 07/11/2022 

Data reported is sourced from the latest available Pupil Level Annual School Census. 
These figures may be slightly different to those observed during the inspection.  
Further information is available from the Welsh Government My Local School 
website: mylocalschool.gov.wales   

a. The term ‘additional learning needs’ is being used to describe those pupils 
on the SEN/ALN register of the school.   

 

Page 3



A report on Clydach Primary School 
November 2022 

2 

Overview 

Clydach Primary school is an inclusive environment where pupils feel safe and cared 
for by their teachers. Staff work hard to build positive working relationships and 
provide good support for pupils’ emotional well-being. Pupils are enthusiastic 
learners and enjoy sharing their work with visitors. 

In general, pupils make suitable progress in their skills and understanding across the 
school. In a few areas of the curriculum pupils are making good progress, for 
example in mathematics and when developing their oracy skills. However, not all 
groups of pupils, including those with additional learning needs or the more able, are 
challenged or supported well enough. This means that these groups of pupils do not 
always make enough progress from their starting points. 

The school is beginning to develop its curriculum appropriately and is providing a few 
engaging learning experiences for pupils. However, progress towards the Curriculum 
for Wales is slow and the school has not yet developed its curriculum well enough to 
ensure that pupils build on their skills and make sustained progress. The re-
introduction of school trips following the pandemic is having a positive impact on 
pupils’ enjoyment of learning. Pupils engage enthusiastically with experiences such 
as their woodland walks. 

Due to significant levels of staff absence, the school does not currently have an 
effective leadership team. The local authority and governors have recently appointed 
an interim headteacher who is helping to improve staff well-being and pupils’ 
progress. However, this arrangement is temporary and there remains a lack of 
capacity in leadership at all levels. This is slowing the progress of the school and 
reducing its ability to build strong relationships with parents to help them support their 
children’s learning. In addition, self-evaluation and improvement activities, as well as 
professional learning opportunities for staff, do not focus sufficiently well on 
improving the quality of teaching and learning. The local authority and governing 
body recognise challenges facing the school and are providing additional support. 

Recommendations 

R1 Establish stable and effective leadership at all levels and improve 
communication with stakeholders 

R2 Improve self-evaluation and strategic planning to enable the school to identify 
and sustain the necessary improvements in teaching and learning 

R3 Improve teaching across the school to ensure that all groups of pupils are 
challenged well enough and make suitable progress 

R4 Improve the curriculum and provision for the progressive development of 
pupils' skills 

R5 Ensure that professional learning encourages collaboration across the school 
and improves teaching and learning 

Page 4



A report on Clydach Primary School 
November 2022 

3 

What happens next 

In accordance with the Education Act 2005, HMCI is of the opinion that special 
measures are required in relation to this school. The school will draw up an action 
plan to show how it is going to address the recommendations. Estyn will monitor the 
school’s progress on a termly basis. 

  

Page 5



A report on Clydach Primary School 
November 2022 

4 

Main evaluation 

Learning 

Many pupils start school with skills, knowledge and understanding at around the level 
expected for their stage of development. The youngest pupils settle in well to school 
routines. As they move through the school, pupils become more independent in their 
learning and make sound progress in developing their skills. However, not all pupils, 
including those who are more able, eligible for free school meals and those with 
additional learning needs, make enough progress as they move through the school. 

Many pupils make good progress in developing their communication skills. They 
speak confidently for a range of purposes, for example when creating their regular 
Clydach television report. Younger pupils listen attentively and with sustained 
concentration. They discuss a variety of topics enthusiastically, sharing their ideas 
with their friends and visitors, for example pupils in Year 1 and Year 2 are keen to 
talk about their creative work when explaining their choices for materials when 
designing and making rafts. 

Many pupils develop positive attitudes towards reading and they talk with enjoyment 
about their favourite books and authors. As pupils move through the school they read 
with increasing fluency and expression. Many pupils between Year 4 and Year 6 
enjoy reading a wider range of books and often talk confidently about the characters 
and events in the text. However, while many pupils have a good sight vocabulary, a 
minority are not able to decode unfamiliar words well enough. This is related to the 
inconsistent provision for the systematic development of phonics across the school. 

The majority of pupils make appropriate progress in their writing skills. The youngest 
pupils develop early writing skills suitably through simple mark making and, by the 
end of Year 2, they begin to write more extended pieces, for example when retelling 
well-known stories. When given sufficient opportunity, the majority of pupils in Year 3 
to Year 6 write descriptively and creatively. They use an increasingly adventurous 
choice of vocabulary and show suitable understanding of the conventions of 
grammar and punctuation. However, a minority of pupils do not write well enough at 
length or use their skills purposefully enough to write freely for a range of purposes 
across the curriculum. Younger pupils begin to develop their letter formation skills 
suitably, but in general handwriting skills are not developed well enough and a 
minority of older pupils do not develop a fluent handwriting style. 

Many pupils make strong progress in developing their numeracy skills. Younger 
pupils learn how to add and subtract numbers successfully and by Year 4, pupils 
apply their skills effectively to solve simple problems, for example when calculating 
the profit made from a sale. Many older pupils use the four operations of number well 
and apply their skills to real life situations skilfully. Pupils in Year 6, apply their 
numeracy skills successfully to work out percentages when calculating attendance 
figures. 

Pupils develop worthwhile digital skills during their time at school. They enjoy using a 
range of programmes to support their work across the curriculum, for instance pupils 
in Reception create a simple animation of a character from their favourite book. As 
they move through the school, they develop confidence in applying more complex 

Page 6



A report on Clydach Primary School 
November 2022 

5 

digital skills, for instance in Year 4, pupils use spreadsheets to calculate profit and 
loss. Most pupils in Year 5 and Year 6 demonstrate advanced skills in presenting 
their work, they create sophisticated animations merging sound and graphics. They 
are beginning to understand and apply basic coding techniques. 

Many pupils make suitable progress in their Welsh language skills. The youngest 
pupils enjoy listening and joining in with Welsh stories and songs and many 
successfully repeat and pronounce simple words using the Welsh language. By the 
time they reach Year 2 many pupils ask and answer simple questions with growing 
confidence. The oldest pupils often use more complex language and extend their 
sentences, for example when they confidently ask, and answer questions related to 
their favourite foods or subjects. 

Pupils develop good physical skills as they move through the school. Pupils in Year 4 
for example, design and perform a sequence of movements across a mat and 
demonstrate control, poise, and flair. Younger pupils in Year 1 and Year 2 engage 
readily in outdoor play and enjoy physical challenges such as ‘walking the plank’ as 
part of their pirate topic. 

Well-being and attitudes to learning 

Many pupils behave well at school and are kind and respectful to adults and other 
pupils. Overall, they feel cared for and know who to go to if they have a problem. 
Pupils often demonstrate good manners, are courteous to those around them and the 
majority demonstrate appropriate behaviour in class. Many regulate their emotions 
well and can talk about how they are feeling. However, the behaviour of a few pupils 
outside of the classroom and on the playground is not always of a good enough 
standard. 

Many pupils have positive attitudes towards their work and demonstrate enthusiasm 
and enjoyment in their learning. They listen appropriately to the ideas and opinions of 
their peers. For example, in Year 5 pupils discuss their class book and share ideas 
about how the author uses language for effect. Many pupils understand the 
importance of considering and using the feedback they receive from adults. As a 
result, they often make good attempts at improving their work, for example pupils in 
Year 6 make useful edits to their journalistic reports. 

In a few instances, pupils persevere to overcome difficulties or engage successfully 
in more challenging activities, for example they use bus timetables from the local 
area to solve problems and set agendas. However, in a minority of lessons, pupils 
are not well engaged due to the lack of challenge in the activities. In these instances, 
they do not develop their resilience or ability to sustain their focus on learning well 
enough. 

The majority of pupils feel included in the life and work of the school and talk 
enthusiastically about their work. When given the opportunity, they enjoy being able 
to influence their own learning, for example when suggesting ideas for their 
independent learning tasks. Following the pandemic, the re-established pupil voice 
groups are beginning to engage pupils in making a difference to school life. The 
school council, for example, has recently improved the play equipment available on 
the school yard. However, the role of pupil voice groups is at an early stage of 
development and does not yet have a significant impact on school life. 

Page 7



A report on Clydach Primary School 
November 2022 

6 

Pupils are developing as ethical and informed citizens of the world. They understand 
their role in helping those less fortunate than themselves, for example, they raise 
money for the Ukrainian Appeal, through a range of enterprise activities. Nearly all 
pupils know how to stay safe online and can explain why this is important, for 
example they understand the impact of cyber-bullying on their own and others well-
being. 

Many pupils know how to keep healthy and fit. They talk knowledgably about the 
importance of a healthy lifestyle and how this contributes to their overall happiness. 
However, a very few pupils do not always make healthy choices when bringing fizzy 
drinks to school. 

Teaching and learning experiences 

Most teachers have warm and effective working relationships with pupils. They use 
praise and encouragement well and, in many classes, this creates a calm 
environment where pupils feel confident to ask for support. 

In the majority of classes, teachers model learning suitably and use an appropriate 
range of resources to scaffold and support learning. However, provision to support 
the needs of all pupils is inconsistent and, in a minority of instances, teachers do not 
always challenge the more able pupils sufficiently, or support those with additional 
needs well enough. Teachers’ verbal feedback often helps pupils to understand how 
they can improve their work.  Staff are developing a more consistent and effective 
approach to written feedback. Where this is most beneficial, pupils often have 
enough opportunity to respond to teachers’ written comments and improve their own 
work successfully. The majority of teachers ask useful questions to gauge pupil 
understanding, develop their thinking and move learning forwards. However, in a 
minority of lessons, the pace of teaching is too slow, overly adult led and is not 
matched well enough to the needs of pupils. As a result, in these instances, a 
minority of pupils lose interest and do not engage well enough in their learning or 
make sufficient progress. 

Staff often include a good range of engaging experiences within the curriculum. 
These experiences include a range of trips and visits that broaden and enrich pupils’ 
knowledge of their local community and Welsh history. Pupils enjoy these 
opportunities and talk and write about them with enthusiasm, for example pupils in 
Year 3 write keenly about their walk through the local woods. However, while the 
school is beginning to think more carefully about their curriculum, the overall 
implementation of the Curriculum for Wales is still at an early stage of development. 
There is not yet a clear understanding of how all elements of the school’s curriculum 
fit together, and teachers do not have a clear understanding of how pupils’ 
knowledge and skills should progress over time and across the school. 

Provision for the improvement of numeracy skills is effective across the school. Many 
teachers use a range of resources suitably to develop pupil skills, for example, 
younger pupils develop and deepen their numeracy skills through useful play-based 
activities. Teachers provide opportunities for pupils to access beneficial resources to 
support their understanding of mathematical concepts. For example, pupils in Year 4 
use a range of hands-on mathematical equipment to support their number work. 
Teachers challenge more able pupils in maths well and provide a good range of 
opportunities for them to apply their skills across the curriculum. 

Page 8



A report on Clydach Primary School 
November 2022 

7 

Support for pupils’ language, literacy and communication skills is generally suitable 
and there are good opportunities for pupils to develop their speaking and listening 
skills. However, opportunities for pupils to write across the curriculum are 
inconsistent and not all teachers have suitably high enough expectations of the 
quality of pupils’ writing. Overall, provision to develop pupils’ reading and handwriting 
is not planned systematically enough and therefore, these skills are not always 
developed well enough over time. The majority of teachers and support staff model 
the Welsh language well across the school. They encourage pupils to use their 
spoken Welsh suitably and promote an awareness of their Welsh heritage. For 
example, pupils in Year 3 find out about their local woodland or beaches. The 
school’s curriculum helps to develop pupils’ understanding of cultural diversity. Pupils 
take part in African drumming sessions, for instance, and enjoy a range of activities 
to celebrate Chinese New Year. However, the strategic planning for the development 
of pupils’ understanding of equality and diversity is underdeveloped and work in this 
area lacks consistency. 

Care, support and guidance 

Staff work hard across the school to provide effective care, support and guidance for 
pupils. This was particularly important during the recent pandemic and since 
returning to school staff have continued to prioritise pupils’ well-being. Staff are 
strong role models and encourage kindness and respect between pupils. Staff 
ensure that pupils’ behaviour in class is usually well monitored. However, strategies 
across the school are not always consistent, and as a result pupils do not always 
understand how rewards and consequences support them to improve their behaviour 
and attitudes towards their learning. 

The school enriches pupils’ spiritual and social development suitably. Members of the 
local church lead school assemblies, and children learn about other faiths in their 
lessons. Staff encourage pupils to consider the views of others sensitively and to 
respect diversity. They use assemblies thoughtfully to promote school values, such 
as kindness. The school provides a wide range of after-school clubs that offer 
sporting and creative activities. These are a firm favourite with pupils and help to 
develop their physical and social skills effectively. 

Provision for pupils with additional learning needs is generally appropriate and 
supports pupils’ needs suitably. During the current absence of the additional learning 
needs co-ordinator (ALNCo), a class teacher has recently begun to support work in 
this area and works conscientiously with a range of external agencies to provide 
suitable support. When families join the school there are suitable arrangements for 
them to talk about their children’s individual needs. However, as these pupils move 
through the school, regular communication, and arrangements to share information 
about progress are less effective. A dedicated team of support staff deliver suitable 
interventions to support pupils basic skills and often provide beneficial support to 
develop pupils’ well-being. However, arrangements for evaluating the effectiveness 
of these interventions are underdeveloped and lack rigour. While processes are 
appropriate, support is often disjointed and inconsistent. As a result, these 
interventions are not always having enough impact on pupils’ progress. 

The school provides suitable opportunities for pupils to become active citizens and 
develop their awareness of important social issues. The school community has 

Page 9



8 

A report on Clydach Primary School 
November 2022 

embraced several pupils and families from Ukraine and helped them settle into 
school life well. The school has appropriate provision to ensure pupils and families 
understand the importance of maintaining good rates of attendance. The interim 
headteacher has strengthened safeguarding procedures and, as a result, there is 
now a suitable culture of safeguarding across the school where staff work diligently to 
ensure that pupils are safe. 

Leadership and management 

Leaders, governors, and staff at Clydach Primary work hard to provide a caring and 
inclusive environment where most pupils feel valued and supported. Currently 
however, there is significant instability in the senior leadership team, which is 
negatively affecting the cohesion and well-being of staff across the school. Senior 
leaders do not always support teachers and middle leaders well enough to innovate 
or provide enough opportunities for them to collaborate effectively with others. This 
means that even when staff begin to work effectively together sufficient progress is 
not always sustained. 

The governing body, supported by the local authority, has very recently taken 
appropriate actions to secure interim leadership of the school. This includes work 
with the school improvement partner to provide suitable support. The interim 
headteacher is beginning to improve staff well-being and pupils’ attitudes to learning. 
However, there remain important gaps in leadership at all levels and the school’s 
administration capacity, which have not yet been addressed sufficiently. 

A majority of staff develop useful links with parents to help support their children’s 
learning. However, communication between school leaders and parents has become 
less effective over time, and a minority of parents have lost confidence in the 
school’s ability to meet the educational and social needs of their children. 

Governors are enthusiastic supporters of the school and ensure that there are 
generally appropriate arrangements for healthy eating and drinking. They have 
established useful links with members of staff, take part in monitoring activities and 
are regular visitors to the school. While governors often provide challenge for leaders 
on a wide range of school matters, they do not always have a secure understanding 
of the school’s work to develop an accurate enough picture of overall progress. As a 
result, there is insufficient focus on those areas for development that need more 
immediate support, for example the progress towards the Curriculum for Wales and 
the ALN reform agenda. 

Leaders pay due regard to reducing the impact of poverty on educational attainment 
and allocate their pupil development grant appropriately, for example to provide 
additional learning support staff. However, they do not always monitor the impact of 
this provision well enough or allocate support carefully enough to accelerate the 
progress of these pupils. Leaders have worked to ensure the development of an 
effective culture of safeguarding. 

The school has a comprehensive monitoring and self-evaluation cycle that it uses 
suitably to gather a range of information. In a few instances, these processes help 
secure good improvements in pupils’ learning, for example in raising the standards of 
mathematics across the curriculum. However, monitoring does not always focus 
rigorously enough on important issues, such as the progress of all groups of pupils, 
the effectiveness of curriculum planning and the quality of teaching. Consequently, 

Page 10



A report on Clydach Primary School 
November 2022 

9 

areas for development often lack clear and coherent steps for improvement. As a 
result, staff do not always know what they need to do to improve their own practice or 
how to contribute effectively to the wider progress of the school. 

The interim headteacher has very recently ensured improvement planning links 
appropriately to the needs of the school. However, over time, improvement planning 
does not focus well enough on the findings of self-evaluation processes or take good 
account of the views of key stakeholders, such as parents, staff, and pupils. As a 
result, leaders do not always match actions carefully enough to the needs of the 
school. Actions are often too broad or too numerous to help leaders move the school 
forwards. Approaches to develop the school’s curriculum, for example, are not 
systematic enough and as a result are not effective in supporting leaders and 
teachers to develop a coherent approach to curriculum development. 

Leaders occasionally provide suitable opportunities for staff professional learning and 
link these to school improvement priorities. They have begun to engage staff in 
action research projects to support them in using educational literature to guide their 
practice. However, leaders do not evaluate this work well enough to understand its 
impact on teaching and learning or create opportunities for staff to share or 
experience good practice. As a result, professional learning does not support all staff 
well enough to improve the quality of their teaching and does not raise their 
expectations of what pupils can achieve. 

Overall, leaders and governors use the school’s budget appropriately. They work 
diligently to address the financial challenges of managing a small school with limited 
outdoor space and older buildings, which are split across two sites. However, while 
leaders and governors think carefully about how to deploy resources, classrooms 
and indoor learning environments are not always sufficiently equipped or used well 
enough to inspire and motivate pupils’ learning. 

 

Page 11



A report on Clydach Primary School 
November 2022 

10 

Evidence base of the report 

Before an inspection, inspectors: 

• analyse the outcomes from the parent/carer and pupil questionnaires and 
consider the views of teachers and the governing body through their 
questionnaire responses 

During an inspection, inspectors normally: 

• hold a meeting with parents/carers to hear their views on the school and its 
effectiveness 

• meet the headteacher, governors, senior and middle leaders (where appropriate) 
and individual teachers to evaluate the impact of the school’s work 

• meet pupils to discuss their work, to listen to them read and to gain their views 
about various aspects of their school 

• meet groups of pupils in leadership roles, such as representatives from the 
school council and eco-committee 

• visit a broad sample of classes, including learning support groups and undertake 
a variety of learning walks to observe pupils learning and to see staff teaching in 
a range of settings, including classrooms, support groups and in outdoor areas 

• where appropriate, visit the specialist resource base within the school to see 
pupils’ learning 

• observe and speak to pupils at lunch and break times and at a sample of after-
school clubs, where appropriate 

• attend assemblies and daily acts of collective worship 
• look closely at the school’s self-evaluation processes 
• consider the school’s improvement plan and look at evidence to show how well 

the school has taken forward planned improvements 
• scrutinise a range of school documents, including information on pupil 

assessment and progress, records of meetings of staff and the governing body, 
information on  pupils’ well-being, including the safeguarding of pupils, and 
records of staff training and professional development 

After the on-site inspection and before the publication of the report, Estyn: 

• review the findings of the inspection alongside the supporting evidence from the 
inspection team in order to validate, moderate and ensure the quality of the 
inspection 

Page 12



A report on Clydach Primary School 
November 2022 

© Crown Copyright 2023:  This report may be re used free of charge in any format or medium 
provided that it is re used accurately and not used in a misleading context.  The material must be 
acknowledged as Crown copyright and the title of the report specified. 

Publication date:  13/01/2023 
11 

Copies of the report 

Copies of this report are available from the school and from the Estyn website 
(www.estyn.gov.wales) 

The report was produced in accordance with Section 28 of the Education Act 2005. 

Every possible care has been taken to ensure that the information in this document is 
accurate at the time of publication.  Any enquiries or comments regarding this 
document/publication should be addressed to: 

Publications Section 
Estyn 
Anchor Court, Keen Road 
Cardiff 
CF24 5JW  or by email to publications@estyn.gov.wales 

This and other Estyn publications are available on our website: www.estyn.gov.wales 

Page 13



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
  
 
 

    

Report summary for parents and 
carers on  
Clydach Primary School 
 
 
  
 
Date of inspection: November 2022 

by Estyn, His Majesty’s Inspectorate for Education and Training in Wales 
Page 14



 

  2 

Overview 
Clydach Primary school is an inclusive environment where pupils feel safe 
and cared for by their teachers. Staff work hard to build positive working 
relationships and provide good support for pupils’ emotional well-being. 
Pupils are enthusiastic learners and enjoy sharing their work with visitors. 

In general, pupils make suitable progress in their skills and understanding 
across the school. In a few areas of the curriculum pupils are making good 
progress, for example in mathematics and when developing their oracy 
skills. However, not all groups of pupils, including those with additional 
learning needs or the more able, are challenged or supported well enough. 
This means that these groups of pupils do not always make enough 
progress from their starting points. 

The school is beginning to develop its curriculum appropriately and is 
providing a few engaging learning experiences for pupils. However, 
progress towards the Curriculum for Wales is slow and the school has not 
yet developed its curriculum well enough to ensure that pupils build on 
their skills and make sustained progress. The re-introduction of school trips 
following the pandemic is having a positive impact on pupils’ enjoyment of 
learning. Pupils engage enthusiastically with experiences such as their 
woodland walks. 

Due to significant levels of staff absence, the school does not currently 
have an effective leadership team. The local authority and governors have 
recently appointed an interim headteacher who is helping to improve staff 
well-being and pupils’ progress. However, this arrangement is temporary 
and there remains a lack of capacity in leadership at all levels. This is 
slowing the progress of the school and reducing its ability to build strong 
relationships with parents to help them support their children’s learning. In 
addition, self-evaluation and improvement activities, as well as 
professional learning opportunities for staff, do not focus sufficiently well 
on improving the quality of teaching and learning. The local authority and 
governing body recognise challenges facing the school and are providing 
additional support.  

Page 15



 

  3 

Recommendations 

R1 Establish stable and effective leadership at all levels and improve communication 
with stakeholders 

R2 Improve self-evaluation and strategic planning to enable the school to identify and 
sustain the necessary improvements in teaching and learning 

R3 Improve teaching across the school to ensure that all groups of pupils are 
challenged well enough and make suitable progress 

R4 Improve the curriculum and provision for the progressive development of pupils' 
skills 

R5 Ensure that professional learning encourages collaboration across the school and 
improves teaching and learning 

What happens next 
In accordance with the Education Act 2005, HMCI is of the opinion that special measures are 
required in relation to this school. The school will draw up an action plan to show how it is going 
to address the recommendations. This is the most intensive level of statutory follow-up. Estyn will 
monitor the school’s progress on a termly basis following the publication of the inspection report. 

 

  

Page 16



 

  4 

School context 
Name of provider Clydach Primary School 

Local authority City and County of Swansea 

Language of the provider English 

Type of school Primary 

Religious character NA 

Number of pupils on roll 202 

Pupils of statutory school age 169 

Number in nursery classes 28 

Percentage of pupils eligible for free 
school meals over a three-year average 
(The national percentage of pupils 
eligible for free school meals over a 
three-year average in Primary is 23.0%) 

24.6% 

Percentage of pupils identified as having 
additional learning needs (a) (The 
national percentage of pupils identified 
as having an additional learning need in 
Primary is 16.1%) 

14.2% 

Percentage of pupils who speak Welsh 
at home 

0.0% 

Percentage of pupils with English as an 
additional language 

7.7% 

Date of headteacher appointment 03/09/2012 

Date of previous Estyn inspection (if 
applicable) 

01/01/2014 

Start date of inspection 07/11/2022 

© Crown Copyright 2023:  This report may be re used free of charge in any format or medium 
provided that it is re used accurately and not used in a misleading context.  The material must be 
acknowledged as Crown copyright and the title of the report specified. 

Publication date:  13/01/2023 

Please note that the photographs displayed may not be of the school that is the subject of this 
report. 

Page 17



Education Scrutiny Performance Panel 
DRAFT Work Programme 2023/2024 

 

Date Items to be discussed Who invited 

Meeting 1 
15 Jun 23 
4.00pm 

1. Additional Learning Needs Reform Annual Update 
(watching brief item) (Kate Phillips and Alison Lane) 

2. New Curriculum for Wales Annual Update (watching brief 
item) (David Thomas) 

3. Estyn Inspection – progress with recommendations (Sarah 
Hughes) 

4. Key issues affecting education 2023/24 (Helen Morgan 
Rees) then discuss draft Work Programme for 2023/24 

Cabinet 
Member and 
Director 
Relevant 
officers 
 

Meeting 2 
13 Jul 23 
4.00pm 

1. Managing and Improving School Attendance including data 
2. Managing and Improving School Exclusions including data 
(Kate Phillips and Helen Howells) 

Cabinet 
Member and 
Director 

Meeting 3 
14 Sep 23 
4.00pm 

1. Looked after Children, support and progress in school (Kate 
Phillips and Helen Howells)  

2. Following up on the 10 CDC recommendations (referred 
from Education Cabinet Development Committee) (Sarah 
Hughes) 

  
3. Feedback from Partneriaeth Scrutiny Councillor Group 

Cabinet 
Member and 
Director 
 
 
 

Panel 
Convener 

Meeting 4 
19 Oct 23 
4.00pm 

Schools Session and Site Visit 1 – Gorseinon Primary 
School 
School Development Plan 
(Pre-meeting with School Improvement Advisor 18 Oct) 

 

Meeting 5 
23 Nov 23 
4.00pm 

1. Reducing disadvantage in Schools, including pupil 
development grant, roll out of free school meals, cost of the 
school day and school uniform (Kelly Small)  

2. School Improvement Service Annual Update (David 
Thomas) 

3. Cookery in Schools (Rhodri Jones) 

Cabinet 
Member and 
Director 
 
 

 

Meeting 6 
14 Dec 23 
4.30pm 

1. Annual Education Performance against identified priorities 
(RAG) including Estyn Inspection recommendations 
progress update (Sarah Hughes) and Cabinet Member 
Q&A  

2. Feedback from Partneriaeth Scrutiny Councillor Group 

Cabinet 
Member and 
Director 
 
Panel 
Convener 

Meeting 7 
18 Jan 24 
4.30pm 

Introducing the New Curriculum for Wales – a meeting with a 
Secondary School and its Cluster Primaries – Gowerton 
Comprehensive School cluster.  (Pre-meeting with School 
Improvement Advisor on 17 Jan at 4.30pm) 
 

Headteachers 
and Chairs of 
Governors 

Meeting 8 
12 Feb 24  
3pm  
 

Annual Council Budget as it relates to education matters Cabinet 
Member and 
Director 

Page 18

Agenda Item 6



Meeting 9 
22 Feb 24 
4.00pm  

Schools Session 2 – Clydach Primary School 
School Development Plan.   Confirmed 
(Pre-meeting with School Improvement Advisor 20 Feb at 
4.30pm) 

Headteacher 
and Chair of 
Governors 

Meeting 10 
13 Mar 24 
4.00pm 
 

Schools Session and Visit 3 – Bishopston Comprehensive 
School 
School Development Plan 
(pre-meeting with School Improvement Advisor 5 Mar 4.30pm) 
 

Headteacher 
and Chair of 
Governors 

Meeting 11 
18 Apr 24 
4.00pm 

1. Religion, Values and Ethics Education (Jennifer Harding-
Richards) 

2. Hearing the Voices of Children and Young People (Rhodri 
Jones) 

3. Education Other Than At School services (EOTAS) Annual 
Update (Kate Phillips) 

Cabinet 
Member and 
Director 

Meeting 12 
9 May 24 
4.00pm 

1. Quality in Education (QEd) / Sustainable Communities for 
Learning Update (Louise Herbert-Evans) 

2. Swansea Skills Partnership Annual Update (David Bawden) 
3. End of year review in Education Scrutiny 

Cabinet 
Member and 
Director 
 

To be added when we have more information from Welsh Government: Performance in Swansea 
Schools – Swansea Education Directorate/Cabinet Member and Partneriaeth (Annual) - Partneriaeth 
Legal Agreement says ‘Each Council's scrutiny committee for children's and education services will 
meet at least once a year to consider performance and progress in their schools such meetings to be 
attended by Council and PARTNERIAETH staff equipped to answer questions’. 

 
 
 
The Panel will also receive relevant individual school Estyn reports as they are published, 
along with any other reports or information relevant to Education Scrutiny. 
 
Background 
 
Cllr Robert Smith, Cabinet Member for Education and Learning 
Helen Morgan Rees, Director of Education 
 
The Officers listed in above timetable and their roles:  
 
Sarah Hughes (Head of Education Strategy) 
Rhodri Jones (Head of Achievement and Partnership Service) 
Kate Phillips (Head of Vulnerable Learners) 
Alison Lane (Head of Additional Learning Needs Team) 
Kelly Small (Head of Planning and Resources Team) 
David Thomas (Principal School Improvement Officer) 
Karin Jenkins (Head of Swansea Music) 
Amanda Taylor (Head of PRU and BSU) 
Jennifer Harding-Richards (Religion, Values and Ethics Adviser) 
Louise Herbert-Evans (Team Manager Capital) 
Lisa Collins (Child Protection and Safeguarding Officer – Vulnerable Learners) 
Helen Howells (Team Manager Pupil Support – Vulnerable Learners) 

Page 19


	Agenda
	5 Sesiwn Craffu Ysgolion 2 - Ysgol Gynradd Clydach
	Inspection report Clydach Primary School 2023
	Parents and carers - Inspection Report - Clydach Primary School 2023

	6 Cynllun Gwaith 2023/2024

